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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Glebe House of St. Amnne's Parish is set in a broad expanse of open, leveél
farmland, formerly known as Cloverfields, overlooking Occupacia Creek at itg
confluence with the Rappahannock River. The house is a two-story, three-
bay building about 50 feet long by 20 feet wide. 1Its brick walls are laid
in Flemish bond,with glazed headers above the beveled water table and raking
courses of glazed headers accenting the roof slopes on the gable ends., The
windows in the second story are diminished in size from those in the first.
Some early six-over-six and four-over-four sash remain, and five-light
transoms cap each of the doorways. All the doors and windows have gauged
jack arches and rubbed brick jambs. Rubbed brick also highlights the
corners of the house. The full basement is illuminated by segmental
openings, and a segmental-arched bulkhead under the entrance door on the
northwest elevation has been closed. The gable roof is covered with early
(but not original) shingles under a tim roof, and interior end chimneys with
four-course corbeled caps crown the structure.

No partitions remain in the house, although structural evidence indicates
that the building was once a center-hall plan structure with brick partitiogs
running from the cellar on up through the second floor. This would mean
that the present straight-run stairway, which rises from near the southeast
door over one of the former partitions, is not original, though it may date
from the early-nineteenth century.

The Glebe possesses a rich store of interior woodwork probably installed
after the house was built, The south first-floor room has a large mantel
of unusual design, consisting of an architrave fireplace surround. with .
heavy crosettes which is abruptly ramped up to meet the cornice soffit over
the center of the opening. The mantel's cornice-shelf itself is enriched
with fretwork-and guilloche moldings: - To either side of the fireplaéde is a
cupboard flanked by strangely conceived, attenuated fluted Doric pilasters
with necking about+one-quarter of the way down. These sit upon slender
pedestals whose surbases are formed by breaking the chair rail around them.
A fretwork cornice is broken out over each of the pilasters.

In this room, as in the other rooms on both the first and the second floors,
a cornice and wainscoting were once carried around all four walls. None of
this or of the rest of the woodwork in the house, with the exception of mos
of the paneled window and door reveals, is still in place. Like the doors
to the cupboards, these paneled reveals probably date from the late-
eighteenth or early-nineteenth centuries. In fact, all

of the present woodwork in the house, including the stairs, may have been
installed when the house passed into private hands in 1803,

Most of the dismantled woodwork is stored in the house and can be replaced,
guided by marks still visible in the interior brickwork. Among this trim
is a mantel for the north first-floor room. This, too, has an architrave
surround with large 'croséttes and is surmounted by a broad pulvinated
frieze and boldly molded mantel 'shelf.
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The floors have been removed by the present owner and stored for future

use in the restoration of the building. The joists reveal a series of
auger holes used to pry the flooring tightly into positiom. The roof

structure consists of close-set common rafters with lapped collar beams

supporting numerous light purlins to which the shingles are applied
directly.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Glebe House of St. Anne's Parish is a significant example of a rare
colonial architectural form. Approximately a dozen glebe houses survive
in Virginia--that of St. Anne's Parish is one of the oldest and most
architecturally distinguished,  The glebe houses were built with the
same high quality craftsmanship employed in the churches, often with the
same workmen, thus accounting for the building's outstanding Flemish-
bond brickwork.

The date of construction of the building is uncertain, but its brickwork
indicates that is was built sometime early in the eighteenth century. The
land had been owned by St. Anne's Parish since 1714, and it has been
suggested that the. house may have been built at the same time as the 1731
addition to nearby Vauter's Church owing to the similarity of the brick-
work in the two buildings. If this is the case, the house is probably

the oldest brick house in Essex. County and one of the oldest glebe houses
in Virginia. U PO VUV P S PR
Prior £0.1731 St. Anne's Parish had been the .focus.of a .court suit
involving the vestry and the royal governor, Alexander SpotSWOOd over

the right of settlement of parish clergy. Traditionally,, in the absence
of an American bishop of the Church of England, the colonial governors of
Virginia had viewed themselves as the heads of the Church in their

colony. At the same time, the lack of an effective central administration
left the vestry in effective control of the parish just as the county
courts--often the same men--were in the county civil goverument.

Spotswood won the suit, but his candidate soon left the parish and the
vestry's man took over. Henceforth, the vestry's power of appointment

was assured in Virginia,

The first occupant of the house was Robert Rose, a Scot, who came to St.
Anne's in 1725. Rose may have had a hand in the building of the house.

A man of many talents, he was also called upon for help in laying out the
city of Richmond in 1751 and died there while carrying out that mission.
He was succeeded by a Mr., Smelts and then by John Matthews,

In 1802, the Virginia legislature .took final ,steps toward the dis-~ ...
establisbment of the Episcopal church when it discontinued gtate

salaries for clergy and ordered the sale of all glebe lands. St. Anne's
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Glebe was sold in 1803 to an Edward Rouzie, possibly a descendant
of the Edward Rouzie to whom the land was originally granted in 167L.

Through the nineteenth century, the property remained in the hands of
Rouzie's heirs, the Bairds, Westmores and Rouzies. In the twentieth
century it has belonged to the Hall, Watts, Richardson and Keck families.
The present owner, J. H., Hundley, Sr., purchased the farm in the early
1960's. The house is presently unoccupied but awaiting restoration.
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